Q> Neath Port Talbot R, oo »)) AGENDA
== C(astell-nedd Port Talbot Seuth Wiest Waies

County Borough Council Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT
COMMITTEE - OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE

12.30 PM THURSDAY, 15 FEBRUARY 2024

MICROSOFT TEAMS

All mobile telephones to be switched to silent for the duration of the
meeting

This meeting will be recorded for broadcast via the Council’s Internet Site.
By patrticipating you are consenting to being filmed and the possible use
of those images and sound recordings for training purposes.
1.  Chair's Announcements
2.  Declarations of Interest
3.  Regional Transport Plan - Case for Change (Pages 3 - 24)
4, Urgent ltems
Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairperson pursuant to

Section 100BA(6)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended).

W.Bramble
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot 8 February 2024




Committee Membership:

Chairperson: Councillor R.Sparks

Vice Councillor T.Bowen
Chairperson:

Councillors: R.Davies, S.Pursey, D.Howlett, M.John,
M.Tierney, E.Schiavone, P.Black and W.Lewis

Co-Opted Non  Councillor Dr. S.Hancock
Voting Members



Agenda Iltem 3

SOUTH WEST WALES CORPORATE JOINT COMMITTEE
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

15" February 2024

Report Title: REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN (RTP) - CASE FOR CHANGE

Purpose of Report To update Members on the Regional
Transport Case for Change in respect of the
Regional Transport Plan to be submitted to
the South West Wales Corporate Joint
Committee for onward submission to Welsh
Government.

Recommendation(s) It is recommended the Members note the
Regional Transport Case for Change in
respect of the Regional Transport Plan
appended to this report to meet the
requirements of the Regional Transport Plan

mandate.

Report Author Stuart Davies Head of Highways &
Transportation, City & County of Swansea
Council

Mark Wade Director of Place, City & County
of Swansea Council

Finance Officer Chris Moore

Legal Officer Craig Griffiths

Introduction / Background:

The Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) for South West Wales has been mandated to produce
a Regional Transport Plan (RTP) for the region by Welsh Government, in conformity with the
Transport (Wales) Act (2006) and to complement Llwybr Newydd: Wales Transport Strategy
(2022).

Following the successful approval of the Implementation Plan by Welsh Government prior to
Christmas 2023 the region has now moved to the next stage of the process and developed a
Case for Change as per Appendix 1.

The case for change demonstrates why our regional transport plan (RTP) is essential for the
ongoing development of our region.

1
Page 3



Our case for change is firmly led by opportunity; the opportunity to enable a growing and
sustainable economy, the opportunity and need to ensure our transport system is sympathetic
to the environment and the opportunity to ensure we can move around and beyond our region
in the most effective way possible for all reasons.

The basis of the case for change is to ensure the RTP is a vehicle to ensure the delivery at
the regional level of Liwybr Newydd, the Wales Transport Strategy, 2021.

This requires the RTP to be developed to reflect national policy and the challenges and
opportunities that face the region in developing a fit for purpose and robust transport network.

The transport network is at the heart of the region; it takes us to work, education and leisure
activities across the region and further afield.

Timescales:

The Case for Change has will be presented to Corporate Joint Committee on 215t February
2024, and then onward to Welsh Government by the 29" of February 2024 submission
deadline.

Financial Impacts:

The Case for Change has been a collaborative exercise to review all factors that need to be
considered when developing the Regional Transport Plan. It does not have a direct financial
impact.

The CJC has allocated funding to assist with the development of the RTP and Welsh
Government have indicated that they will make available £125k of funding in the current
financial year towards the development of the RTP, with a further £100k in 2024-25.

The full cost of the RTP is yet to be determined but it is clear that further funding will be
required. The funding will need to be provided to enable the plan to be progressed and this
will need to be identified and allocated through ongoing discussion with Welsh Government.

Integrated Impact Assessment:

The CJC is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty and the socio-economic
duty), the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language
(Wales) Measure, and must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to:

. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Acts.

o Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who do not.

2
Page 4



o Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
those who do not.

o Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-economic
disadvantage

o Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language

o Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English.

o Ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of
future generations to meet their own needs.

In recognition of the above duties, the CJC has adopted an Integrated Impact Assessment
(IIA) Tool which allows for a 2 stage approach to be undertaken to measure any potential
impact of its decisions. It is not considered that an Integrated Impact Assessment (Il1A) is
required for this report as it does not seek a substantive policy decision from Members

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan includes
the CJC’s Equality Objective which is set out below for ease of reference:

“To deliver a more equal South West Wales by 2035 by contributing towards:

(@) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aim of eliminating
inequality caused by poverty;

(b) The achievement of the Equality statement set out in LIwybr Newydd which is to make
our transport services and infrastructure accessible and inclusive by aiming to remove
the physical, attitudinal, environmental, systemic, linguistic and economic barriers that
prevent people from using sustainable transport, and

(c) The achievement of the Welsh Government’s long-term equality aims of cohesive
communities that are resilient, fair and equal and where everyone is able to participate
in political, public and everyday life. There will be no room for racism and / or
discrimination of any kind.”

Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015

Alignment with CJC Corporate Plan 2023-2028 and the identified CJC Well-being objectives:

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that public bodies in Wales
must carry out sustainable development. Sustainable development means the process of
improving the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by taking
action, in accordance with the sustainable development principle, aimed at achieving the
‘well-being goals’.

The CJC approved its Corporate Plan 2023-2028 in March 2023. The Corporate Plan contains
the CJC’s well-being objectives and frames the corporate direction of travel. To this end, it is
considered that the recommendation(s) contained within this report align(s) to the corporate
policy framework of the CJC as set out within its Corporate Plan, most notably in terms of
Well-being Objective 2 as outlined below for ease of reference:

Well-Being Objective 2

3
Page 5


https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024
https://www.gov.wales/llwybr-newydd-wales-transport-strategy-2021
https://www.gov.wales/equality-plan-and-objectives-2020-2024

“To produce a Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales that is founded on collaboration
and enables the delivery of a transport system which is good for our current and future
generations of people and communities, good for our environment and good for our economy
and places (rural and urban).”

Workforce Impacts:

The CJC has approved resources to support the development of the RTP and hence
recruitment processes are being followed to secure support. In addition, the region will
procure specialist support as necessary to develop the RTP.

Legal Impacts:

The Case for Change is the second stage of producing a Regional Transport Plan which is a
duty placed on the CJC by Welsh Government pursuant to the Local Government and
Elections (Wales) Act 2021. The South West Wales Corporate Joint Committee Regulations
came into force on 15t April 2021 the timeframes for the discharging of specific functions.
Risk Management Impacts:

None.

Consultation:

No formal consultation required for the purpose of this report.

Recommendation — For Noting:

To ensure the Committee is aware of the Regional Transport Case for Change submission
to Welsh Government.

Appendices:

1. SWW RTP - Case For Change

List of Background Papers:

Welsh Government Regional Transport Plans: Guidance for Corporate Joint Committees

4
Page 6


https://www.gov.wales/regional-transport-plans-guidance-corporate-joint-committees

Cyd-bwyllgor Corfforedig
De-orllewin Cymru
Corporate Joint Committee for

South West Wales

»»

The Case for Change for the
Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

yalbot CO”,:_.
0‘\ fyé)

L

PN = )

omeor Sir Gar B £ n 2
Carmarthenshire 2 — &
- A=

QO

G asa e
gy Cou“('\

Page 7



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

South West Wales Regional Transport Plan - Case for Change
INTRODUCTION

This case for change demonstrates why our regional transport plan (RTP) is essential for the ongoing
development of our region.  Our case for change is firmly led by opportunity; the opportunity to
enable a growing and sustainable economy, the opportunity and need to ensure our transport system
is sympathetic to the environment and the opportunity to ensure we can move around and beyond
our region in the most effective way possible for all reasons.

The basis of the case for change is to ensure the RTP is a vehicle to ensure the delivery at the regional
level of Liwybr Newydd, the Wales Transport Strategy, 2021. This requires the RTP to be developed
to reflect national policy and the challenges and opportunities that face the region in developing a fit
for purpose and robust transport network.

The transport network is at the heart of the region; it takes us to work, education, health care and
leisure activities across the region and further afield.

THE AIM OF THE RTP

Liwybr Newydd has three overarching priorities the drive and inform the vision for the RTP. Within
the three priorities the region has identified a small number of objectives that will enable Liwybr
Newydd to be delivered regionally. The three priorities of Liwybr Newydd are reflected in the table
below; these in turn lead to the RTP aims and objectives.

Pagle 8



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Table 1. RTP Aims and Objectives

AN ACCESSIBLE, SUSTAINABLE AND EFFICIENT TRANSPORT SYSTEM

Liwybr Newydd Priority 2 Liwybr Newydd Priority 3

Allow people and goods to Encourage people to make the
move easily from door to door
by accessible, sustainable and
efficient transport services and
infrastructure.

change to more sustainable
transport.

REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN AIMS

To enable our residents to
change their travel behaviour
to use low-carbon, sustainable
transport.

To achieve a shift away from
private car use to more
sustainable travel modes
through service and

To improve physical
connectivity through

enhancing active travel
infrastructure to local services.

infrastructure improvements.

REGIONAL TRANSPORT PLAN OBIJECTIVES

To improve active travel
infrastructure to local services
in the first instance. Where
this is not feasible enable
residents to make sustainable
travel choices.

To have a transport system
that supports the growth and
development of sustainable

economic activity in the region.

To have a transport system
that recognises the hierarchy
of travel modes identified in
Liwybr Newydd, which is as
follows:

1. Walking and cycling (highest
priority)

2. Public transport (rail, bus,
community transport and
taxis)

3. Ultra-low emission vehicles
4. Private motor vehicles
(lowest priority).

To have a transport system
that recognises the diverse
communities of the region and
their varying transport needs.

Make sustainable transport
more available, attractive and
affordable.

To promote sustainable travel
choice wherever possible.

Paée 9




The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Developing a more effective, more sustainable transport network in the region is not an end in itself;
it must make changes that improve people’s daily lives.

We have identified that the current network does not adequately serve the people of the region and
that this is contributing to poor outcomes, including limiting access to employment, ill health, negative
environmental impacts (noise, pollution, air quality, road traffic accidents) and social exclusion. The
efficiency of transport provision is a key determinant of how the region is perceived externally and the
degree to which inwards investment in the economy can be maximised and our tourism offer
developed. Affordability will need to be at the centre of the RTP to ensure access to transport is
equitable.

The case for change is based on the premise of “decide and provide”, we shall decide collaboratively
the RTP vision and then set out how this will be provided. The framework provided by Llwybr Newydd,
the Future Generations (Wales) Act, national climate change and environmental policies together with
national and regional land use planning policy provides the key inputs into the vision which must be
aligned with regional and local aims and objectives.

WHERE ARE WE NOW?

The transport network in the region comprises of some local routes for pedestrian and cyclists that
provide access in villages, towns and cities to local destinations such as shops, schools, doctors
surgeries and leisure activities.

At the next level, a rail and bus system provide key linkages between main areas of population, but
both have seen limited investment in the recent past. Subsidised bus services along with Demand
Responsive (DRT) bus services have successfully covered rural areas in recent years, but this approach
has known challenges with stable funding. The national Traws Cymru bus network provides long-
distance links not made by the rail network and has seen deployment of zero-emission buses recently
on the T1 Carmarthen to Aberystwyth route. Electrification of the rail line between Swansea and
Cardiff has not been progressed leaving the services vulnerable to changes in the future provision of
trains. Further west, issues with staffing, timetabling and implementation of new trains has meant
that regular scheduled services to Pembrokeshire are often terminated at Carmarthen and a rail
replacement bus utilised.

The concept of a South West Wales Metro system which provides an integrated public transport
network with high quality interchange between modes is firmly established with detailed proposals
under development to shape new investment in rail and bus. In many cases these proposals have
strong business cases developed and are ready for early implementation.

The road network is extensive, covering the entire region. The network ranges from the main arteries
of the M4/ A40 corridor and the A465 corridor to urban networks in the Swansea Bay area and the key
towns together with local routes that provide essential access in rural areas. The 20mph speed limit
on formerly 30 mph roads has been implemented across the region as mandated by Welsh
Government.

Page3 10



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

The region has demonstrable areas of deprivation, but a majority of households (81%) in the region
have access to at least one car or van®. This coupled with the current need for car use in many
locations can lead to situations where car ownership is prioritised over other areas of household
expenditure. There are some urban areas with high levels of deprivation and low car ownership which
give rise to ‘transport poverty’. Transport poverty can also be mode specific with rural areas having
limited access to effective public transport and cycling and walking opportunities.

Figure 1. Welsh IMD 2019

Welsh Index of Multiple Deprivation 2019 South West Wales Regions

1 (10% most deprived
neighbourhoods / 10% o
gymdogaethau mwyaf
difreintiedig)
I 2
K]
4
5
6
7
s
I -
10 (10% least deprived
[ neighbourhoods / 10% o
gymdogaethau lleiaf
difreintiedig)
[ LSOA Boundaries SWW
[ Regional Boundaries SWW

UNTY ,
0 ",

Cyd-bwyligor Corfforedig ‘,p (/ 4" oot ou,
X i 3 .. %
De-orllewin Cymru § \ >} oo SirGu R b
Corporate Joint Committee for o, & & Carmar(henshur'e' ’%F—e‘:/’f
South West Wales el Gty o O e

12021 Census data — Table TS045

Page 11



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Figure 2. Car or van availability in South West Wales — 2021 Census

South West Wales Percentage of Population with no Car or Van Available - 2021 Census

No car or van available
[ <10%

[ 10%-20%

[ 20%-30%

[ 30%-40%

B 40%-50%

B >50%

[ Regional Boundaries SWW

&

Cyd-bwyligor Corfforedig & &‘
De-orllewin Cymru )))) H &% o
Corporate Joint Committee for " 3
South West Wales ‘u:,’.,.«ﬂ‘r

"""" Sir Gari 4 n %
Carmarthenshire % — &
¢ 2 e, ~—
L

ey o

The location and distribution of the population is an important driver of transport demand. Across the
region population densites are low outside of the main urban areas. Equally, transport demand in
rural areas is driven by concentation of jobs, education and facilities located in the range of larger
communites, all of which will require transport for access.

Page 12



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Figure 3. Population Density in South West Wales — 2021 Census

South West Wales Population Density / Hectares - 2021 Census

Population Density /
Hectares
[ J<s

[ 510
[ J1020
[ 2030
[ 3040
[ 40-50
[ so-60
I s0-70
I 70-30
Il >=0

[ Regional Boundaries SWW

QUNTY g,
Cyd-bwyligr Cortforedig & %,
De-orllewin Cymru g \({, %
Corporate Joint Committee for .‘ ‘\» “:
South West Wales g™

oo Sir Gar : {
Carmarthenshire % —
Yy ot Y ot

e, ¢

The local GVA figures? (for 2021) reflect the region’s spatial portrait with service industries, public
sector work and rural activities notable. The figures for Pembrokeshire reflect the level of skilled jobs
present in the two port areas and the energy sector.

e Pembrokeshire £25,754

e Carmarthenshire £19,013
e Swansea £23,592

e NPT£17,713

The characteristics of the transport network reflects the strong role that car transport plays in the area.
The use of a car is a necessity in many rural areas of the region and also for more complex urban
journeys. The transport infrastructure reflects this reliance.

2 Sourced from Statswales https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Business-Economy-and-Labour-
Market/Regional-Accounts/Gross-Value-Added-GDP/gvaperhead-by-area-year GVA estimates the total output
of an economy in this case a Council and per person specific figure has been given.

Paée 13



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

WHY IS CHANGE NEEDED?

The case for change is based on the need for the transport system as a whole to reflect changes in the
demands placed upon it and also to ensure the transport system can deliver the movement and
accessibility a changing region requires.

The population of the region is projected to increase. Whilst the increases are modest in percentage
terms over the next 20 years the effect on the ability of the increased population to access work,
education and community facilities will need to be improved to accommodate existing and future
demands in a way that supports sustainable travel choices, economic activity and social inclusion
across the region.

Table 2. South West Wales Population Projections (Welsh Government 2018)

2023 2043 Change
South West Wales 915,005 946,815 3.5%
Pembrokeshire 126,580 130,196 2.9%
Carmarthenshire 190,022 197,218 3.8%
Swansea 250,004 264,840 5.9%
Neath Port Talbot 144,894 151,889 4.8%

THE ECONOMY

The economic profile and industrial mix of South West Wales is diverse. Also, overlaid with the general
increase in population is a changing region where the economic opportunity created by the city deal
investments will require a corresponding improvement in mobility.

The South West Wales Regional Economic Delivery Plan sets a clear path to economic prosperity. The
starting point is one of structural, including infrastructure challenges. Recovery from covid19 has been
excellent in some economic areas, less so in others. Transport has a significant effect on this variance
and is a barrier to delivery of the economic goals for the region.

The region is home to the busy ports of Fishguard and Milford Haven, which brings freight and
passenger traffic flows across the region. The predominant flow of road-based freight within the region
is east-west, along the A40 / M4 corridor with the A465 and A483 trunk roads providing further
essential road links to the north and east. Itis also home to UK’s only current raw iron production site
at Port Talbot that is planned to receive a £1.25 billion investment in green furnaces but also see major
changes in working practices in the medium term. This reform will have major implications for the
local economy and transport requirements; a formal notification of 2,800 job losses has been made in
January 2024 with further but currently unquantified job losses expected in the local supply chain.
This significant labour market change is likely to trigger notable transport consequences given the
location of jobs across the region and in adjoining regions.

Page 14



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

This industrial legacy is supported by development in the digital and education sectors with two
universities and an active city deal across the region that prioritises the digital economy.

Tourism is a vital economic asset for the region. Pre-covid evidence up to 2019° from Welsh
Government indicated an annual value of £1.2 billion to the region representing circa 20% of all
tourism activity in Wales.

The Swansea Bay City Deal is a nine project £1.3 billion investment in the region with central
government, local government and private sector funding. As part of this there are nine key projects
are underway to deliver a transformational change in work, education and skills. The projects are;

e  Skills and Talent

e Digital Infrastructure

e Canolfan S4C Yr Egin

e Swansea City and Waterfront Digital District

e Homes as Power Stations

e Pembroke Dock Marine

e Life Sciences, Wellbeing and Sports Campuses
o Pentre Awel

e Supporting Innovation and Low Carbon Growth

The 9,000 new jobs that are planned within these projects will need to be accommodated on the
region’s transport system.

In parallel to the city deal, the Celtic Freeport provides a planned reinvention of the Milford Haven
and Port Talbot areas with new diverse initiatives focused on renewable energy, with links to the
tourism and digital economy sectors. The Freeport has replaced the Haven Waterway Enterprise Zone
and the Port Talbot Waterfront Enterprise Zone, both of which were developed to provide economic
stimulus.

The freeport is formed of 600ha of land that will be dedicated to the development of off-shore
renewable infrastructure. The planned investment will reach £5.5 billion. The Freeport plans to
develop 16,000 new jobs to create an employment hotspot in the area.

The creation of new jobs will require transport provision to meet new demand for movement given
the effect will be to develop a green investment and innovation corridor stretching from Milford
Haven to Port Talbot.

THE SOCIAL ECONOMY
The social fabric of the region is essential to the wellbeing and development of the area. A UK national

asset critical to the wider UK transport system is the presence of the DVLA in Swansea with the
associated 6,000 jobs.

3 https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2021-03/tourism-profile-south-west-wales-
2017-2019-summary.pdf

Paée 15



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Access to education, healthcare, leisure facilities and shops all rely on transport to provide access. In
reality much of the regional transport needs are met currently by car-based modes due to the wide
range of journeys that need to be made. Across all communities a number of vulnerable and hard to
reach groups will require specific consideration in the development of the RTP. The development of
the RTP will have an ongoing workstream to develop assessments of the impacts for vulnerable and
hard to reach groups

The region faces challenges that relate to transport provision and its affordability. These challenges
include current instability in bus service funding and the effect of the cost of living crisis.

The social economy of the region reflects the diverse communities of the region with many interested
parties working to deliver transport solutions; these include the NHS, businesses and local
communities. All these organisations and groups have bespoke transport requirements, the levels of
which and locations are continually evolving. The transport that supports this changing need and level
of activity will need to be reflected in the RTP.

In particular education related transport faces particular delivery challenges of statutory and
discretionary travel. The RTP will examine the accessibility to education to understand what policy
levers are available to ensure a sustainable service is achievable.

A further ‘social’ element of the transport system in South West Wales is tourism, with its seasonal
demands placing a particular burden on ‘hotspots’ in the summer months. The value of tourism to the
area is noted in the economy section, above. Within that overall level of activity of the 23 million
average day visitors to the region annually in 2017-19, of which 65% (15 million) used a car to access
the region with 4.5% by rail. The predominance of road access and concentration into the summer
months and specific locations creates a challenge that the RTP will need to consider.

THE TRANSPORT SYSTEM

The current transport system is predominantly road based. This is perhaps understandable given
historic circumstances and approaches to transport planning followed in the past. Given the need to
change how travel occurs and the need to manage the impact of transport the RTP follows the lead of
Liwybr Newydd and is seeking make active travel and public transport valid alternatives to private
transportation. This will require an evolving transport network with key investments being identified.
To shape this a new RTP is essential to setting the policy framework and highlighting major investment
proposals.

Page9 16



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Figure 4. South West Wales — existing transport network 2024

South West Wales Infrastructure

=3 sww Boundary

[_1 Regional Boundaries SWw
— MoboraaEys

—— A roads

—— Rail Lines

®  Railway Stations

Map data &
OpenStreet Map
confributors, Mooy,
Facebook, Inc, and it

affiliates, Esri Commiinity
Map data © DpenSireetMap contributors, Microsolt, Facebook, inc and its Maps contributers, Map
affifistes, Furi Community Maps contributers, Map keyer by Esri layer by Exri

g g,
exc-tmdigni Lorlioeede & Y
De-orllewin Cymru 3 -
CIII,’\III:'.'X']DIIH Commuttes (or -%k- ;‘
South West Wales gyt

Given the mixed urban and rural nature of the region, a series of solutions tailored to the varied socio-
economic circumstances across the region are going to be required to be developed in the RTP.

The approach of developing a mode hierarchy that proactively pursues active travel and public
transport choices wherever feasible is necessary for the region to meet its obligations on climate
change and to ensure that economic development can occur without recourse to significant road
changes. The RTP will need to identify the scope of this ambition and the detail of how it would be
delivered and funded. Equally importantly, the RTP will need to consider at a strategic level how the
existing road network and any additions necessary will be managed and maintained.

In addition to mode choice, the RTP has to set out our agenda and proposals for reducing the transport
effects that cause climate change.

The transport system has a role to play in retaining economic activity within the region by making local
journeys easy to achieve. The rail network currently, for example, indicates that local services are not
used to their maximum and that the main passenger flows are to Cardiff and Eastwards.

10
Page 17



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Table 3. ORR Rail Journey Data 2021-22

Total Rail Trips from Swansea 2021/22 739,009

Cardiff Central 207,466
Neath 83,271
London Paddington 80,699
Llanelli 47,362
Port Talbot Parkway 43,135
Bridgend 31,684
Carmarthen 23,797
Gowerton 18,357
Newport (South Wales) 15,991
Pembrey and Burry Port 12,042
Bristol Temple Meads 9,626

Bristol Parkway 9,426

THE METRO

Maximum use is not made of the existing railway infrastructure with a number of freight only lines
that could support investment to accommodate passenger services. The development of the rail
elements of the South West Wales Metro provide a suitable framework to develop and seek funding
for these proposals. Strong business cases have been developed for major investment in the rail
elements of Metro. These include:

Rail

e SWW Mainline Rail Improvements
e Swansea Bay Metro Rail Improvements
e  West Wales Parkway Improvements

Bus

e SWW Transport Hubs
e SWW RTPI Report

Active travel

e SWW Cycling Strategy
e SWW study into cycle hire, e-bikes and journey planning
e SWW propensity to active travel report

e ULEV strategy for SWW

e EV Rapid Charging Hub Feasibility Studies
e EV Car Club Study

e EV Depot Study

e Depot Hydrogen Study

11
Page 18



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Development funding for the 2024/25 year has been secured to ensure that Metro is developed in
alignment with the RTP delivery programme.

BUS AND METRO
We wish to see the Metro network concept of an integrated public transport network extended to bus,
thus driving improvements in the network where rail links are not feasible. This will require changes

to the current governance and funding approaches for bus.

At present access to traditional hourly bus services is limited to the urban areas and interurban
connections. This creates challenges for making bus a mode of choice outside of these areas.

Figure 5. Current Bus Network — Access to an hourly weekday bus service (0700-1900)

. Legend

[ South west Wales region
Accessible areas

Population estimate within
accessible areas:

Accessible arass delined as s area which s withi
i

Baswd on Q2 2023 Nrnetables.
A i Bstimates are based an Office for

Stalistes (ONS) papulatior-vsighied
canbords al owloul ared kol and assockied 2021
consus data

Ligenca
& Cromn copyright and database rights 2023 O
ACHIGRBIIIAZ

TRAFNIDIAETH CYMRLU
TRANSPORT FOR WALES

Chiont
Soush West Wales Comorate Joint Commites

Project Title
GComorate Joint Commitias (C-JC) Transpart Data.
Pack.

Orawirng Tite
Access o public transpant stopsisiatians with
frequency of at least 1-per-hour | Tuesday
Q7:00-19:00)

Scalo al A1
1:410,000

Drawing Ststus
For information

a 5 10 15 km Drawing Humber Revision
I — 1aof§ 1

The bus network will evolve through franchising undertaken by TfW but with local input to define the
network involved. This change on operational model presents a major opportunity for RTP to shape
the network’s outputs unlike the current approach of a network initially defined by commercial
imperatives.  An imperative is for the RTP to establish how, where and why interchange between
travel modes can be enabled to allow the ‘network’ approach to be deliverable.

12
Page 19



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

THE WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS

The Future Generation (Wales) Act sets out a clear framework for a developing Wales and how future
generations are protected from the adverse effect of present-day decisions. The RTP will need to
consider how this protection works in the transport context within the region. An integrated impact
assessment will be conducted during the development of the RTP.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND GREENING THE TRANSPORT SYSTEM

The region is host to two national parks, Bannau Brycheiniog National Park (Brecon Beacons) and
Pembrokeshire Coast National Park, both providing a unique landscape and environment that requires
special protection. The region is also the host to the Gower Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONB).

The transport ecosystem faces two main challenges (i) to enable access to the national parks and the
AONB so their beauty and environment can be enjoyed and (ii) ensure that the effects of transport
provision on the precious environment is minimised. This will require rethinking our approach to
access and how transport interacts with the landscape across the national park areas. Also the same
principles will be applied to our non-national park areas across the region as the region has an
abundance of statutory environmental designations in place , for example, ANOBs SSSI’s and SINCs.

There are seven AQMA:s in force across the region. The AQMA designations are pollutant based and,
traffic has played a key role in the need for some of these AQMAs. To help alleviate the traffic related
issues, speed limits have been lowered on sections of the M4 to assist in meet air quality requirements.
Unless efforts to decarbonise are embedded in the RTP, more such changes could be necessary but
damaging to journey times. At the same time, the adverse impact on personal health of poor air
quality is a key driver for change that the RTP will recognise in the development of solutions.

Table 4. South West Wales AQMAs

Council Area Pollutant Location Main Reason
NO2 Llandeilo Traffic
Carmarthenshire NO2 Llanelli Traffic
NO2 Carmarthen Traffic
Neath Port Talbot PM10 Particulates Port Talbot Steel Works
. NO2 Haverfordwest Traffic
Pembrokeshire -
Pembroke Traffic
Swansea NO2 Radial Routes Traffic

The RTP will need to develop a new EV strategy including setting charging requirements and working
with grid suppliers and DNOs to ensure power is available where needed. This will allow us to
proactively transition to a zero carbon emission transport system. The RTP will identify the pace at
which the region is currently moving to a zero-emission transport system and how this can be
accelerated as ULEVs continues to evolve.

13
Page 20



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Liwybr Newydd and the Welsh national climate targets (which are more stringent than the UK wide
equivalents) make a compelling case for seeking a revised transport system that secures investment to
enable the necessary changes to occur. Strongly encouraging the use of active travel modes and public
transport needs to be coupled to securing approaches to greening our vehicle fleet and securing the
investment for electrification of rail.

RURAL NEED

South West Wales is home to many sparsely populated, rural and semi-rural areas, and we need to
consider the travel needs of people living in those areas. Journey times by public transport are often
uncompetitive with cars, particularly in locations away from the main inter-urban corridors. Low
frequencies and the need to interchange are significant barriers in the current public transport system
to people regularly using public transport and encourage car ownership and use.

Whilst few traditional bus services operate in rural areas DRT bus services have shown that low density
populations can successfully be accessible by public transport if the funding and delivery structures
are in place.  Rural areas face particular challenges in having a stable supply of transport at an
affordable cost. Lowering bus service investment, fuel poverty in rural areas coupled with wider rural
poverty creates social exclusion and inequality that good quality transport can help overcome. The RTP
will need to assess how this can be delivered and funded.

Southwest Wales retains a number of rural and ‘town’ railway stations but again service frequencies
are low, car access is often required to the stations and access can be difficult for cyclists, walkers and
public transport users.

SERVICING, FREIGHT AND THE PORTS

The movement of freight through the region is lifeline for the region’s economy. It does however come
with some challenges. Traffic to the ports passes through the region gives little benefit to the local
community and economy en-route. The M4/A40/A465 corridors support theses strategic movements.
The jobs and activity created at the ports themselves are a cornerstone of the region’s economy so
change in how access the ports can be made as effective as possible whilst also capturing value for the
community from these important facilities will be a key RTP theme.

The ports at Milford Haven, Port Talbot, Swansea and Fishguard are national assets with water-based
access that give the region a unique and critical role.

Rail freight is limited beyond Margam Yard in NPT with flows to the Robeston Qil Plant and the Trostre
Tinplate works still timetabled. The creation of new railway test track at Onllwyn on the region’s border
provides an opportunity for more trains and rail supply industry activity. The freight yard at Margam
serves the Port Talbot steelworks and has rail links to other steel production facilities such as the West
Midlands, Scunthorpe, Teesside and Dee Marsh on the Wirral.

14
Page 21



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

Local deliveries create challenges in the urban context with high levels of “white van” activity. In rural
areas large vans, delivering small items over large areas create specific challenges with efficiency of
the delivery systems currently employed and the suitability of vehicles for rural roads.

The movement of HGVs through region creates a tension between local amenity and business
requirements. Change will need to come in the form of effective routing, suitable facilities for HGV
parking and locking into ways to decarbonise HGV use.

LAND USE PLANNING

The CJC will be responsible for strategic development planning, regional transport planning and
promoting the economic well-being of the region. This brings a significant opportunity to fully integrate
land use choices together with meeting development’s transport use.

The CJC has a lead role in cross-regional transport planning to ensure that our cross-boundary links are
strengthened in the context of a developing and changing region.

As the regional planning approach will take time to fully develop, the RTP will need to be relevant to
the current and any future local development plans.

Thus, the new RTP will assist in the making of sustainable development decisions and provide a
framework to enable the regional tier of land use planning be transport enabled. The RTP will set out
the transport policies for strategic candidate sites and opportunities for growth across the region.

THE RISK OF NOT CHANGING

The key risks of not changing will be seen in other areas of the region’s activity. Transport is a derived
demand and the transport network responds to or pre-empts the needs placed upon it.

The dangers of not having a dynamic and forward looking RTP are that investment in transport across
all modes stagnates and decisions in other area of the region’s evolution are taken without a robust
and evidenced transport plan in place. At risk are the key goals of sustainable economic growth, an
improved environment and a place people wish to live in, visit or simply enjoy.

DRAFT ENGAGEMENT PLAN

The basis of the draft engagement plan is to conduct a staged approach that has three central
elements:

i A programme of awareness building across the widest possible range of stakeholders and
interest groups. At this stage, the key message will relate to informing stakeholders of the
RTPs importance to the region, encourage further technical and community engagement and
to ensure that the greatest number of interested organisations and groups are reached. A
series of briefing sessions are planned for March 2024 to conduct this outreach activity.

15
Page 22



The Case for Change for the Regional Transport Plan for South West Wales

ii. Technical consultation with the stakeholder and interest group communities. It is proposed
to take this on a thematic basis to encourage debate about the RTP and its content among
stakeholders with aligned interests. A central strand will be formal engagement within the
constituent local authorities with disciplines that provide transport or rely on the transport
network’s outcomes. This engagement conducted across a range of channels is scheduled
for April to September 2024.

iii. On development a draft RTP document, a full, formal, public consultation in line with WG
guidance and best practice will be held. To ensure that necessary impact assessments can be
finalised and the learning from the consultation are fully included in the final approved RTP
the public consultation is scheduled for the end of 2024. Again, a range of channels are
expected to be deployed to reach communities not easily reached by traditional approaches.
As a precursor to the main public consultation, it proposed to set up a series of small public
sounding groups to meet during summer 2024 to provide an early view on the emerging RTP.

The stakeholder group lists are now being finalised to allow the stage (i) Stakeholder outreach to
commence in March 2024.

GOVERNANCE

Successful delivery of infrastructure and transport services requires governance to be effective. The
Liwybr Newydd, provides the basis for parties in the region to create better travel options. A key cross-
boundary delivery mechanism is the CJC comprising the four local authorities and two National Park
Authorities.

The CJC has been established and will drive the delivery of the RTP and the schemes to be funded
through this, including the development of the South West Wales metro. The RTP will set out our
agenda for change and develop the policies and solutions that are required.

CONCLUSION

The case for change sets out why the region’s transport system must evolve and investment secured
to deliver that change. The transport system has direct links to a wide eco-system of other policy
areas that have common interest in a working and developing transport network for region. As the
RTP is developed the commitment to ensure that stakeholder views and aspirations are recognised is
an essential element of having a robust RTP in place. The RTP presents a unique opportunity to make
the necessary connections to other regional policies, not least land-use planning which will be seen in
the emerging Strategic Development Plan.

16
Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Regional Transport Plan - Case for Change
	Appendix 1 - SWW RTP - Case For Change


